
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Martha Clampitt 

direct line 0300 300 4032 
date 9 September 2010  

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
 

TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT MEETING 
 

 
Date & Time 

Tuesday, 21 September 2010 10.00 a.m. 
 

Venue at 
Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 

 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Portfolio Holder for Safer Communities and Healthier Lifestyles: 
 

Cllr David McVicar 
 

 
To all other Members of the Council as requested 

 
 
 



 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
  

 To receive from Members declarations and the nature thereof in relation 
to:-  
 
(a) Personal Interests in any Agenda item 

 
(b) Personal and Prejudicial Interests in any Agenda item 

 
 
 

2. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
  

 
To deal with general questions and statements from members of the public in 
accordance with the scheme of public participation set out in Annex 1 to Part 
A4 of the Constitution.  
 
 

 
Reports 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

3 Petition - To provide a Crossing Patrol, 20mph 
Speed Limit and One Way System in Manor Road 
Barton-Le-Clay 
The purpose of this report is to present a petition 
received from Ramsay Lower School and signed by 
parents requesting the above actions 
 

*  3 - 16 

4 Residents' Survey & Report - Parking Restrictions in 
Kendall Drive, Flitwick 
The purpose of this report is to present a residents’ 
survey concerning parking in the Kendal Drive area of 
Flitwick. 
 

*  17 - 22 

5 Manor Way, Flitwick - Resolution of objections to the 
proposed Prohibition of Waiting 
To report  to the Portfolio Holder for Safer and Stronger 
Communities the receipt of objections to proposals for 
waiting restrictions in Manor Way , Flitwick and seek 
approval for the implementation of this scheme. 
 

*  23 - 30 

 



 
 
Meeting: Traffic Management Meeting  

Date: 21st September 2010 

Subject: Petition – To provide a Crossing Patrol, 20mph Speed 
Limit and One Way System in Manor Road Barton-Le-Clay 
 

Report of: Basil Jackson 

Summary: The purpose of this report is to present a petition received from Ramsay 
Lower School and signed by parents requesting the above actions 

 
 
Contact Officer: Nick Chapman 

nick.chapman@amey.co.uk  
 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: Leighton Central and Southcott 

Function of: Council 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
 
Financial: 

Approximately £2000 would be required to undertake a traffic study. There is currently a 
budget within the integrated work programme allocated for the assessment of traffic 
management requests. 

Legal: 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Risk Management: 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Community Safety: 

None as a result of this report 
 
Sustainability: 

None as a result of this report  

 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 3



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

The Portfolio Holder for Safer Communities and Healthier Lifestyles is requested 
to note the contents of the report. 

 
Background and Information. 
 
1. A petition of nearly 200 signatures has been received from the Head Teacher of 

Ramsay Manor Lower School requesting a school crossing patrol, a 20 mph 
speed limit at the school and a one way traffic system in Manor Road. 
 

2. In respect of the provision of a school crossing patrol Central Bedfordshire 
Council such requests are assessed by officers against set criteria. Budgets are 
limited and only those locations that meet the criteria will be considered for 
provision. In the case of Ramsay Manor school the assessment has been 
carried out and currently the site does not meet the criteria but officers are in 
discussion with the school on regarding the possibility of providing a crossing 
patrol funded by the school. 
 

3. There is no policy in Central Bedfordshire to implement a 20mph speed limit 
outside all schools. A policy to do so was originally adopted by the former 
Bedfordshire County Council. 
 

4. Following the creation of the new unitary authorities the policy was considered 
by Central Bedfordshire Council but it was agreed that until full detailed 
information could be provided on the practicality of doing this and the likely cost 
to the authority that it should not be adopted as policy for the new Council. To 
date this situation has not changed. 
 

5. Currently where a Safer Routes to School has been identified in the vicinity of a 
school or schools it is normal practice to consider the creation of a 20mph 
speed limit as part of the works. It is not appropriate to do this in all cases and 
will depend upon a range of factors. 
 

6. In the case of Ramsay Manor school there is currently no Safer Routes to 
School scheme planned for the Manor Road area. 
 

7. Up to date speed data is not available for this location and the collection of this 
would form part of any future assessment of the site. 
 

8. There has been only one slight injury accident recorded in Manor Road in the 
last three years involving a pedestrian. 
 

9. The general environment in Manor Road is not one where excessive speeds 
would be expected as a general rule. There is footway on one side, housing on 
both sides and a considerable number of driveways. The road has a number of 
bends that break up the direct drivers line as do parked vehicles. 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 4



 
10. Although relatively narrow in width the road, when uncluttered, is comfortable for 

most vehicles to pass with ease. It is also not a route where excessive numbers 
of wide or heavy vehicles would be expected other than for access. It is likely 
that to make this road into a one way street would appreciably increase the 
speed of vehicles as driver confidence around bends and obstructions would 
increase significantly. 
 

11. The road is also generally unsuitable for one way treatment because of its 
considerable length and, even if only the length in front of the school were to be 
considered, the resulting diversion for the opposite direction would be tortuous 
and through residential streets. 
 

Conclusion and The way Forward 
 
12. It is expected that the discussions between officers of the Council and the 

school will resolve the school crossing patrol situation. 
 

13. It is not recommended that a one way traffic order be considered for Manor 
Road for the reasons give. In that it would be inappropriate and would be likely 
to be counter productive to reducing vehicle speed. 
 

14. The implementation of a 20mph zone at the school is not currently proposed. 
There is no safer routes to school scheme for the area and in the absence of 
current vehicle speed information and a policy from Central Bedfordshire 
Council there is no obvious reason why it should be necessary. 
 

15. Given the nature of the road it is expected that speeds will not be excessive in 
respect of the current 30mph limit and this site will be placed on the list of sites 
to be assessed. 
 

16. There would seem to be no substantial reason why a 20mph limit could not be 
introduced here subject to speed data, the appropriate policy and budgetary 
constraints. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3
Page 7



Agenda Item 3
Page 8



Agenda Item 3
Page 9



Agenda Item 3
Page 10



Agenda Item 3
Page 11



Agenda Item 3
Page 12



Agenda Item 3
Page 13



Agenda Item 3
Page 14



Agenda Item 3
Page 15



Agenda Item 3
Page 16



 
 
Meeting: Traffic Management Meeting  

Date: 21st  September 2010 

Subject: Residents’ Survey & Report – Parking Restrictions in 
Kendall Drive, Flitwick 
 

Report of: Basil Jackson Assistant Director for Highways and Transportation 

Summary: The purpose of this report is to present a residents’ survey concerning 
parking in the Kendal Drive area of Flitwick. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Nick Chapman 

nick.chapman@amey.co.uk  
 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: Flitwick 

Function of: Council 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
 
Financial: 

None as a result of this report 

Legal: 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Risk Management: 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Community Safety: 

None as a result of this report. 
 
Sustainability: 

None as a result of this report  

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 17



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

The Portfolio Holder for Safer Communities and Healthier Lifestyles is requested 
to note the contents of the report. 
 
 
Background and Information. 
 
1. A report has been received via Councillor Stephen Male from a resident of 

Kendal Drive, Flitwick containing the results of a local parking survey and 
suggesting possible actions. 
 

2. When the outcomes of the Flitwick parking study were implemented Kendal 
Drive and the culs-de-sac off it were all subject to part time waiting 
restrictions designed to prevent all day parking by rail commuters. This is one 
of the residential areas closest to the station. Following this the residents of 
Grassmere Close asked residents parking. 
 

3. Conventional residents parking would not have been cost effective in this 
small close so it was agreed it would be implemented on an experimental 
basis by leaving the yellow lines in place to apply to non permit holders but 
permitting those in possession of a permit to park on the lines within 
Grassmere Close only. 
 

4. Following the experimental period it was felt that it had been successful and 
the situation has now been made permanent. 
 

5. Residents of Kendal Drive and the culs-de-sac leading from it have 
expressed an interest in something similar and to test opinion have carried 
out their own surveys. 
 

6. Two private surveys of residents have been undertaken during 2010. It was 
acknowledged by the organiser that the original one was overly complex. 
Hence, a second survey was conducted which simply asked those living in 
Kendal Drive and the immediately adjoining side roads if they would like to 
have a residents’ permit zone (RPZ) covering their streets. It is this second 
survey upon which this report concentrates. 
 

7. There are approximately 65 homes in the area and 29 households responded 
to the survey. Of those, 21 said that they would like to apply for an RPZ and 
the remaining 8 said they would not. Each individual street shows support for 
an RPZ, albeit in some cases the number of survey returns is very low. 
 

8. Generally, residents consider that the current restrictions have significantly 
improved the parking situation in their streets, mainly by removing commuter 
parking. They also feel that on-street parking difficulties experienced at the 
start and end of the school have eased a little. 
 

9. Given the apparent support for an RPZ the person leading the campaign has 
suggested the following way forward:- 
 

 (a) The whole area becomes a resident only parking area. 
 (b) Retention of the existing alternating yellow line restrictions. 

Agenda Item 4
Page 18



 (c) No Marked-out parking bays. 
 

10. In essence, they want to retain the existing restrictions, but allow residents 
the option to purchase a permit to be exempt from the restrictions. 
 

Conclusion and the way Forward 
 
11. The type of restrictions that are currently in place are effective at addressing 

parking by non-residents, but it is accepted that they do have drawbacks. 
The main one being that those residents who wish to park on-street during 
the operational days are required to move their vehicles during the restriction 
‘changeover’ period, which in the case of Kendal Drive is between 12.45 and 
13.15pm. This clearly has an impact of those households who have 
insufficient off-road parking for their needs and there appear to be a small 
number of households in this situation in Kendal Drive. 
 

12. Consequently, the residents’ desire to have the option to purchase a permit 
to exempt them from the current restriction is understandable and appears to 
be a reasonable request. However, this would require significant changes to 
the existing restrictions. 
 

13. Regulations governing how parking controls are marked and signed dictate 
that where waiting is prohibited, either at all times or for specified periods, 
these lengths of road are indicated by yellow lines. Where parking is 
permitted but conditions apply, such as residents’ permit zones, these are 
marked by white boxes. It is not normally permissible to provide residents’ 
permits to allow vehicles to be parked on yellow lines. This is the reason that 
the Grasmere Close scheme was implemented under the experimental title. 
 

14. In addition there are some practical difficulties in allowing residents to be 
exempt from the existing yellow lines. For example, most vehicles would be 
switched from one side of the road to the other at lunchtime, but those with 
permits would not be moved. This may create some vehicular conflict. Also, if 
certain vehicles are seen to be disregarding the yellow lines, this may 
encourage others to do likewise, which may bring the restrictions into 
disrepute. 
 

15. There would appear to be several possible options to address residents’ 
concerns, and these are detailed below:- 
 

 •  Remove the existing restrictions and replace them with a full RPZ. 
This would require a full and formal consultation of all residents and 
would only proceed if more than 50% of the households were in 
favour and prepared to pay for permits. Once implemented it would 
require all residents wishing to park on the road to buy a permit, 
which would remove any requirement to move their cars at 
lunchtime. It would still remove all commuter parking. A possible 
disadvantage is that white parking boxes would need to be marked, 
which would regulate parking to such an extent that the overall 
number of parking spaces would be significantly reduced. A further 
drawback is that all residents who wished to park on-street during the 
operational hours would need to buy a permit. 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 19



 •  An RPZ could be introduced, but signposted by a new type of RPZ 
entry sign that would inform drivers entering the area that parking 
was for permit holders only between the prescribed hours. This type 
of sign does not require road markings, so the existing lines could be 
removed or left to wear away. The advantage is that white boxes 
would not be required, so parking capacity would not be affected. 
However, this system relies on permit holders parking in a sensible 
and considerate manner. A possible disadvantage is that the removal 
of some upright signage may lead to non-residents believing that 
parking is unrestricted. The support of the community would still be 
required at the same level. 
 

 •  The type of parking restriction currently used could be retained, but 
the operational hours changed. For example, the restrictions could 
apply from, say, 9.00am to 9.15am from Monday to Friday and would 
apply to both side of the road. This would mean that rail commuters 
would be very unlikely to park there are they normally need to park 
before 9.15am. After 9.15am residents would be able park their cars 
on street for the remainder of the day without having to move them. A 
disadvantage is that all cars would need to be removed from the 
street during the operational 15 minutes. However, this is a time 
when some residents may be away from home, for example taking 
children to school. Unless, however, this were to be applied across 
Flitwick this would introduce an inconsistency into the overall parking 
regime that the original scheme sought to introduce with consequent 
confusion for residents, commuters and enforcers. 
 

16. If a suitable parking scheme could be agreed there would inevitably be the 
issue of setting a precedent. There are a number of streets in Flitwick that 
have suffered from commuter parking and the type of alternating yellow line 
restrictions, such as those in Kendal Drive, have been introduced to address 
the difficulties. The character of many of these roads is similar, i.e. most 
properties have off-road parking, but some have insufficient for their needs. 
As a result, residents of these roads may well demand a similar scheme to 
Kendal Drive and this would have significant resource implications. 
 

17. It is considered that the existing restrictions in the Kendal Drive area have 
been very successful in addressing commuter parking and this has been 
acknowledged by the survey organiser. However, there appear to be a small 
number of households who are disadvantaged by the restrictions and would 
favour a change to the present situation. Whilst these difficulties are 
acknowledged, it is often impractical to tailor on-street parking controls to the 
needs of individual residents. 
 

18. In recent years, significant resources have been committed to resolving 
parking issues in Flitwick, including the Kendal Drive area. It is difficult to 
justify additional expenditure amending a system that for the most part works 
well. 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 20



 
19. Before making any changes it would be necessary for Central Bedfordshire to 

undertake its own consultation to ascertain the support for each of the 
residents parking options and for that support to represent in excess of 50% of 
the households not the respondents to be in support of the changes. This 
exercise would be in itself costly to undertake. 
 

20. It is therefore proposed that whilst there is a clear support for change from 
some of the  residents this, as currently represented, does not comprise 
sufficient reason for change. To determine this further survey work would be 
required. The proposed Local Transport Plan 3 document currently in 
production will target available finance for the coming year at those areas 
and projects that it considers will represent the best value for the priority 
areas selected. At this juncture it must be considered unlikely that schemes 
such as this would achieve sufficient priority for inclusion in a work 
programme especially considering that Flitwick has not been selected as one 
of the first tranche of priority areas to be considered in LTP3. 
 

21. There would be no immediate barrier, however, if the scheme were to be 
considered a priority by the Flitwick Town Council to that body funding the 
necessary work. 
 

22. It is therefore requested that the portfolio holder note the content of this 
report and that the lead petitioners be advised of the outcome. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4
Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Meeting: Traffic Management Meeting 

Date: 21st September 2010 

Subject: Manor Way, Flitwick - Resolution of objections to the 
proposed Prohibition of Waiting 
 

Report of: Basil Jackson, Assistant Director of Highways and Transportation. 

Summary: To report  to the Portfolio Holder for Safer and Stronger Communities 
the receipt of objections to proposals for waiting restrictions in Manor 
Way , Flitwick and seek approval for the implementation of this scheme. 

 
 
Contact Officer: Ronald Phelvin – Senior Technician 

Ronald.Phelvin@amey.co.uk 
Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: Flitwick 

Function of: Council 

 
 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
To improve highway safety and facilitate the free flow of traffic. 
 
Financial: 

None as part of this report 
 
Legal: 

None as part of this report 
 
Risk Management: 

None as part of this report 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

None as part of this report 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

None as part of this report 
 
Community Safety: 

The proposal will improve road safety 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 23



Sustainability: 

None as part of this report 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

that the proposal to extend the existing No Waiting Restriction in  
Manor Way Flitwick by 20 metres be implemented as set out in this report. 

 
 
Background and Information 
 
1. 
 

In May 2010 proposals to introduce waiting restrictions at six locations in 
Flitwick, namely Temple Way, Steppingley Road, Manor Way and Station Road, 
were advertised. No objections were received to the proposed restrictions at five 
of these locations, so these will be implemented as advertised. At the remaining 
location, in Manor Way, two objections have been received and consideration of 
these is the purpose of this report. 
 

2. In early 2010, concerns were raised about on-street parking in the proximity of 
the informal pedestrian crossing point and associated kerb build-out near 
Rosebay Close. Residents expressed their concerns that the parking was 
obscuring lines of sight for motorists and pedestrians alike. It was felt that this 
could be detrimental to the safety of residents and motorists. Bedfordshire 
Highways has investigated the matter and it was considered that by extending 
the length of the existing prohibition of waiting by 20 metres this would 
substantially reduce the current hazard.  
 

3. 
 

The two objections received were from local residents. Both objectors are 
concerned about the loss of available on-street parking as they have limited 
off-road parking available. It is suggested that the Council provides additional 
parking spaces for local residents. A further concern raised by both objectors 
is that the removal of on-street parking will increase vehicle speeds on this 
length of road. 
 

Conclusion and the Way Forward 
 
4. 
 

It is acknowledged that the proposal will remove some parking places, but 
ample unrestricted lengths of Manor Way will remain where residents will be 
able to park. Observations would suggest that alternative parking places are 
also available in adjacent streets. The provision of off-street parking facilities in 
residential areas has never been a priority for the Council and funds are not 
provided for this purpose. 
 

5. It is accepted that the introduction of waiting restrictions can increase vehicle 
speeds by presenting drivers with a clear stretch of road, increasing forward 
visibility and reducing the likelihood of them meeting opposing traffic. 
However, the current proposal represents a relatively short extension of 
existing restrictions, which is unlikely to have a significant impact on traffic 
speeds. 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 24



6. It is considered essential that parking is prohibited on this length of road to 
ensure that motorists are able to safely negotiate the kerb build-out and to 
improve visibility for both drivers and pedestrians. 
 

 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Location plan 
Appendix B – Public notice 
Appendix C – Objections to proposal 
 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 25



APPENDIX A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 26



APPENDIX B 

 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 27



 

Agenda Item 5
Page 28



APPENDIX C 
 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 29



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5
Page 30


	Agenda
	3 Petition - To provide a Crossing Patrol, 20mph Speed Limit and One Way System in Manor Road Barton-Le-Clay
	Ramsey Manor Lower School Petition

	4 Residents' Survey & Report - Parking Restrictions in Kendall Drive, Flitwick
	5 Manor Way, Flitwick - Resolution of objections to the proposed Prohibition of Waiting

